
LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB 
COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 29th January, 2019
10.00 am

Public Document Pack



Licensing Act 2003 Sub Committee DATE - 29-01-19 Page 2 of 4

LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB 
COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 29th January, 2019
 at 10.00 am

AGENDA

1) Appointment of Chair 
To consider the appointment of Chair for the meeting

2) Apologies for Absence 
To receive any apologies for absence

3) Minutes of the last Meeting 5 - 6
To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the last Licensing Act 2003  
Sub Committee meeting held on 4th December 2019.

4) Additional Items of Business 
To determine whether there are any additional items of business which, 
by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should be 
considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency

5) Declaration of Interest 
In accordance with the Regulations, Members are required to declare any 
personal or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the 
nature of those interests in respect of items on this agenda and/or 
indicate if S106 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to 
them.

6) Exclusion of the Public-Identify Items 
To determine during which items, if any, the public are to be excluded 
from the meeting

7) Determination of a Premises Licence Application-European Foods 7 - 12
To determine a Premises Licence application under the Licensing Act 
2003 relating to European Foods,260 Colne Road,Burnley,BB10 1DZ 
(redacted documents).
a) Appx A-Application 13 - 36
b) Appx B- LCC Trading Standards 37 - 40
c) Appx C-Lancashire Constabulary 41 - 42
d) Appx D- LCC Public Health 43 - 74
e) Appx E- Burnley Borough Council Licensing 75 - 88



Licensing Act 2003 Sub Committee DATE - 29-01-19 Page 3 of 4

f) Appx F- Burnley Borough Council Streetscene 89 - 94
8) Conduct of Hearing 95 - 102

9) Exclusion of the Public 
To consider the exclusion of the public from the meeting before 
discussion takes place on the following item of business on the grounds 
that in view of the nature of the business to be transacted if the public 
were present there would be a disclosure to them of exempt information 
within the meaning of Part VA of the Local Government Act 1972.

10) Determination of a Premises Licence Application-European Foods 103 - 108

To determine a Premises Licence application under the Licensing Act 
2003 relating to European Foods,260 Colne Road,Burnley,BB10 1DZ (un-
redacted documents).

Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual. 

a) Appx A-Application 109 - 130
Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual. 

b) Appx B-LCC Trading Standards 131 - 134
Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual. 

c) Appx C-Lancashire Constabulary 135 - 136
Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual. 

d) Appx D-LCC Public Health 137 - 168
Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual. 

e) Appx E-Burnley Borough Council Licensing 169 - 182
Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual. 

f) Appx F- Burnley Borough Council Streetscene 183 - 188
Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual. 



Licensing Act 2003 Sub Committee DATE - 29-01-19 Page 4 of 4

MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEE 

Councillor Frank Cant
Councillor Anne Kelly (4th Member)

Councillor Ann Royle
Councillor Christine White

PUBLISHED Monday, 21st January 2019



Licensing Act 2003 Sub Committee 04/12/2018 Page 1 of 2

BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB COMMITTEE
BURNLEY TOWN HALL

Tuesday, 4th December, 2018

PRESENT 

MEMBERS

Councillors F Cant, I Emo and A Kelly

OFFICERS
David Talbot  Senior Solicitor
Eric Dickinson  Democracy Officer
John Yardley  Licensing & Compliance Officer
Claudia Wilcock  Business Administation Apprentice

15 Appointment of Chair 

Councillor Anne Kelly was appointed  as Chair for this meeting.

16 Minutes of the last Meetings 

The Minutes of the last meetings held on 2nd and 9th July 2018 were agreed as a correct 
record and signed by the Chair.

17 Declaration of Interest 

18 Exclusion of the Public 

That the determination of a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003 relating to the 
Blu Bar, Cow Lane, Burnley be held in public. 

19 Review of a Premises Licence - Blu Bar, Cow Lane, Burnley 

John Yardley confirmed  that the notices of the hearing had been sent to the relevant 
parties.
He reported on a review of a premises licence at Blu Bar, Cow Lane, Burnley and 
presented the case on behalf of the Licensing Authority relating to Regulation 26 (1) of the 
Licensing Act 2003, and was accompanied by John Clucas (Licensing and Compliance 
Officer).

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Licensing Act 2003 Sub Committee 04/12/2018 Page 2 of 2

Sergeant Gary Hennighan , accompanied by Chris Kehoe (Legal representative) presented 
the case on behalf of Lancashire Constabulary.

Catherine Price (Town Centre Manager), Richard Brown (Community Safety Officer), and 
Zed Hamid (Dual Services Manager) presented witness statements.

Mark Jones (Designated Premises Supervisor), Beverley Musso ((Premises Licence 
Holder), Darren Taylor (Manager ) and Frank Musso presented the case on behalf of Blu 
Bar. 

DECISION AND REASONS FOR DECISION

Decision
That the conditions of the licence be modified so that the hours of opening be amended 
from a 24hr licence to be from 7pm to 6am.

Reason for Decision
Based on the evidence presented, the Licensing objectives of the prevention of crime and 
disorder and the protection of children from harm were breached on multiple occasions at 
or near the vicinity of the premises.

Page 6



D:\Burnley\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\8\9\AI00007980\$ffh4qtpy.doc

ITEM NO

REPORT TO LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE

DATE 29th January 2019
PORTFOLIO Streetscene
REPORT AUTHOR John Yardley
TEL NO 0114 3999067

EMAIL jyardley@burnley.gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003 Determination of an application for a premises licence

PURPOSE

1. To consider an application received from Clau & Chris Limited for the grant of a premises 
licence under the Licensing Act 2003.
The application is attached at Appendix ‘A’

2. The premises are European Foods, 260 Colne Road, Burnley, BB10 1DZ

The proposed designated premises supervisor (DPS) is PERSON A, XX XXXXXX Street, 
Burnley, BB10 XXX.

RECOMMENDATION

3.
Members are recommended to make a determination with a view to promoting the 
licensing objectives.

 The prevention of crime and disorder
 Public safety
 Prevention of public nuisance
 Protection of children from harm 

The committee must take such of the following steps as it considers necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives:

 Grant the application as asked.
 Modify the conditions of the licence, by altering, omitting or adding to them.
 Reject the whole or part of the application

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

4. Members of the Licensing Committee are responsible for determining such applications.

Page 7

Agenda Item 7



D:\Burnley\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\8\9\AI00007980\$ffh4qtpy.doc

SUMMARY OF KEY POINTS

5.
The application is for a premises licence under Section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003

The licensable activities applied for are:

The sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises.

The proposed hours that the premises would be open for the sale of alcohol are:

00.00hrs to 2359hrs Monday to Sunday (24hrs)

In December 2017 the Licensing Sub Committee considered a review application 
submitted by Trading Standards in relation these premises, the application from Trading 
Standards followed a lengthy history of illegal activity surrounding trade in illicit products. 
The committee determined that the Premises Licence be revoked. Following an appeal the 
magistrate’s court upheld the decision and dismissed the appeal on the 16th August 2018.

Representations have been received from Lancashire Trading Standards Service, the 
representation relates to recent visits to the premises in August 2018 resulting in further 
seizures of illicit tobacco. Further concerns have also been expressed in relation to the 
previous owners still being involved with the applicant. (Details of the representation are 
appended in appendix ‘B’ )

Representations have also been received from Lancashire Police these relate to joint visits 
with Trading Standards and Burnley Council in August 2018 where evidence of un 
authorized sales of alcohol was found at the premises and quantities of alcohol seized. 
(Details of the representation are appended in appendix ‘C’ )

Further representations have been received from Public Health Lancashire surrounding the 
negative impact the grant of this application would have on the Prevention of Crime and 
Disorder and Protection of Children from Harm licensing objectives. (Details of the 
representation are appended in appendix ‘D’ )

Representations have also been received from the Burnley Councils’ Licensing Unit in 
relation to a test purchase which took place at the premises on the 9th January 2019 when 
alcohol was illegally sold by the Designated Premises Supervisor named in this this 
application. Legal proceedings are currently being considered in relation to this offence.
(Details of the representation are appended in appendix ‘E’ )

A representation has been received from  Burnley Councils’ Streetscene Solicitor in 
relation to the service of a Community Protection Warning Notice on the responsible 
person at the premises outlining the ASB concerns and the steps that the council required 
him to take to mitigate those concerns.
(Details of the representation are appended in appendix ‘F’ )

Page 8



D:\Burnley\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\8\9\AI00007980\$ffh4qtpy.doc

Members are reminded that representations are only relevant if they relate to one or more 
of the 4 licensing objectives which are:

 PREVENTION OF CRIME & DISORDER
 PUBLIC SAFETY
 PREVENTION OF PUBLIC NUISANCE
 PROTECTION OF CHILDREN FROM HARM

A representation is “relevant” if it relates to the likely effect of the grant of the licence on 
the promotion of at least one of the licensing objectives.  

If this Committee approves the application the licence would be granted subject to the
Mandatory conditions for sale of alcohol as set out in the Licensing Act 2003 as amended 
by the Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Licensing Conditions) Order 2010 and Order 2014.

The applicants have, in their operating schedule, detailed what steps they intend to take to 
promote the four licensing objectives. Compliance with this schedule becomes a condition 
of any licence granted. Those steps are:

a) All staff will be trained before making sales of alcohol in their responsibilities under 
the Licensing Act 2003. Refresher training will take place at 6 monthly intervals. All 
training will be documented and made available to the authorities on reasonable 
request.

b) A CCTV system will be in operation at the premises and recorded images shall be 
retained for a period of 28days. CCTV images will be provided to the police and 
other responsible authorities as soon as practicable and in any case within 48 hours 
of a request for such images, subject of the provisions of the DPA

c) An incident register will be maintained at the premises and made available to the 
authorities on request

d) All staff at the store will be trained in how to manage any person who they suspect 
may create a public nuisance in the area of the store. Such people will be asked to 
leave the area quietly (if safe to do so) an entry will be made in the incident register.

Notices of a hearing have been sent to the applicant and to each of the persons from 
whom the licensing authority has accepted a representation.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS AND BUDGET PROVISION

6. None

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

7. The following paragraphs from Burnley Borough Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 
2016 – 2021 are relevant to this application:

3.1 We will promote the 4 licensing objectives, namely

Page 9



D:\Burnley\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\8\9\AI00007980\$ffh4qtpy.doc

o the prevention of crime and disorder
o public safety
o the prevention of public nuisance; and
o the protection of children from harm, and all our decisions will reflect these 

objectives.

3.2 We consider each licensing objective to be of equal importance. They will be 
considered in relation to matters centered on the premises or within the control of the 
licensee.  We will objectively consider the direct effect that the carrying on of the licensable 
activities has in the vicinity of the premises. Licensing law is not a mechanism for the 
general control of anti-social behavior by individuals once they are beyond the direct 
control of the licensee or vicinity of licensed premises.

3.7 Under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, the authority must exercise its functions, 
having regard to the likely effect on crime and disorder in its area, and must do all it can to 
prevent crime and disorder. Where its discretion is engaged, the authority will seek to 
promote the licensing objective of preventing crime and disorder in a manner which 
supports the Lancashire County Council Community Safety Action Plan and any local 
community safety priorities or emerging threats identified Burnley Community Safety 
Delivery Group (MATAC)

3.8 If relevant representations are made in relation to a premises licence or club 
premises certificate, the council will consider whether it is necessary to impose conditions 
to regulate behaviour on the premises and access to them where this relates to licensable 
activities, and the licensing objectives. Any conditions attached will not seek to manage the 
behaviour of customers once they are beyond the direct management of the licence holder, 
their staff or agents, but may seek to impact on the behaviour of customers on or in the 
immediate vicinity of premises as they seek to enter or leave.

9.1      The authority may only impose conditions where relevant representations are  
made following an application to grant or vary a licence or where a review request is being 
considered. 

9.2 The council recognises that the only conditions that should be imposed on a licence 
are those which are appropriate and proportionate to the promotion of the licensing 
objectives. There may be circumstances where existing legislation and regulations already 
effectively promote the licensing objectives and no additional conditions are required.  

Members are reminded of the consideration they should give to the Human Rights Act 
1998 in particular those rights afforded by Article 6 (right to a fair hearing), Article 1 of the 
First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 8 (right to respect for private and family 
life).

DETAILS OF CONSULTATION

8. The statutory consultation has taken place

Page 10



D:\Burnley\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\8\9\AI00007980\$ffh4qtpy.doc

BACKGROUND PAPERS

9. Burnley Borough Council Statement of Licensing Policy.
Licensing Act 2003.

FURTHER INFORMATION      
PLEASE CONTACT: John Yardley ext 249067     

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13

Agenda Item 7a



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37

Agenda Item 7b



Page 38



Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



19th December 2018

John Yardley
Licensing Unit
Burnley Borough Council

Police Objection to the application for premises licence and DPS at European 
Foods, 260 Colne Road, Burnley

Please accept this as the police representation to the application received to an 
application for a premises licence for European Foods, 260 Colne Road, Burnley by 
Clau & Cris LTD and for a proposal to make PERSON A – DOB XX/XX/XX - the 
Designated Premises Supervisor.

The police are formally objecting to the application as we have concerns that the 
crime prevention licensing objective will be undermined if the premises licence was 
granted.

The grounds for concern are:

There has been a long-standing history of illegal activity at the premises which can be 
evidenced by partner agencies. 

Clau and Cris LTD is a limited company with two directors – one of whom is 
PERSON C – born XXXXXX – of XXXXXXX, Burnley. PERSON C is the partner 
of PERSON B, also of XXXXXXXXX, DOB XX/XX/XXXX.

On Thursday, 30th August 2018, I visited the shop at 260 Colne Road, with Trading 
Standards and Burnley Borough Council, due to a concern about unlicensed alcohol 
sales. PERSON B claimed to be the shop owner and was working behind the counter. 
The shop was called Drinks Express at this time.

A large amount of alcohol was on display for sale and subsequently seized from the 
store. I later carried out an interview under caution with PERSON B who gave a full 
and frank admission that he was selling the alcohol without a licence. PERSON B 
received a conditional caution – with the condition being that the alcohol was 
disposed by police.

This was in circumstances where the sale of alcohol by retail was an unauthorised 
licensable activity, contrary to Sec 137 of the Licensing Act 2003.

Therefore it is our view that the licensing objectives are undermined – namely 
prevention of crime and disorder and public safety. This has an impact on the 
nomination of DPS. Although he isn’t known to police, any action that affects the 
granting of the Premises Licence would have an impact on proposed DPS.

Page 41

Agenda Item 7c



I also have grave concerns over the application for a 24-hour alcohol licence in an 
area that has larger proportions of crime, especially violent crime, compared to 
Burnley and the Lancashire average. In addition, a higher proportion of alcohol-
related anti-social behaviour is apparent in the locality.

Further, I reserve the right to bring further evidence to any hearing should any arise 
between now and then.

Regards

Sgt 3707 Gary Hennighan
Licensing Sergeant – East Division

Page 42



Page 43

Agenda Item 7d



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75

Agenda Item 7e



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



The Licensing Act 2003 – Representations re: 260 Colne Road.

I am Jonathan Jackson, employed, since 1998, by Burnley Borough Council 
as the Solicitor in the Streetscene Department dealing with Anti Social 
behaviour.

I make this statement using facts and matters within my own knowledge.

Historically the shop at 260 Colne Road has been brought to the attention of 
the ASB team because of anecdotal evidence obtained from young ASB 
perpetrators as a shop that sells alcohol and cigarettes without concerning 
themselves with the appropriate checks on age.

As part of a joint initiative with Lancashire Trading Standards a project was 
started whereby the most notorious shops in Burnley were targeted using 
Community Protection legislation from the Anti-Social Behaviour, Policing 
and Crime Act 2014.

To that end, on the 12th November 2018, a Community Protection Warning 
Notice (exhibit 1) was served on the responsible party – PERSON B - 
outlining the ASB concerns and the steps that the council required him to 
take to mitigate those concerns.

Signed    J Jackson

Dated: 11th January 2018

Page 89

Agenda Item 7f



This page is intentionally left blank



The Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014, sections 43 to 58 Warning Notice

Person B
XXXXXXX Street
Burnley

COMMUNITY PROTECTION WARNING NOTICE

Being satisfied that your conduct* (see Schedule 1) is having a detrimental effect on the 
quality of life of others in the locality, Jonathan Jackson, an authorised officer of Burnley 
Borough Council, hereby requires that you do: 

 
 Specifics Timescale for 

completion (if 
required) 

1.  Not possess for supply, or allow to be possessed for 
supply by any member of staff or visitor to the shop 
premises at 260 Colne Road, Burnley, any smuggled, 
bootlegged, counterfeit or otherwise illicit tobacco 
products  

With Immediate 
effect  

2.  Provide on request by any officer of Lancashire 
Constabulary, Lancashire County Council or Burnley 
Borough Council evidence that all tobacco and/or 
alcohol products have been purchased from a reputable 
source and are reputable products  

With immediate 
effect  

3.  Maintain a working CCTV system covering all public 
areas of the shop premises at 260 Colne road, Burnley 
and provide on request by any officer of Lancashire 
Constabulary, Lancashire County Council or Burnley 
Borough Council evidence the system is maintained in 
proper working order; recording date and time; 
operating throughout all business operating hours; 
recordings are stored for a minimum of 31 days and 
there are processes in place to ensure recordings cannot 
be tampered with  

By 28 November 
2018  

4.  Ensure a written Check 25 and Challenge 25 Policy for 
tobacco and (if applicable) alcohol sales respectively at 
the shop premises at 260 Colne Road, Burnley is in place 
and agreed by the Council’s Licensing Officer and that 
training of all staff on the Policy can be evidenced on 
request by any officer of Lancashire Constabulary, 
Lancashire County Council or Burnley Borough Council 

By 28 November 
2018  

5.  Have the appropriate posters detailing the Check 25 and 
Challenge 25 Policy displayed at all times at all points of 
sale 

By 28 November 
2018 

Page 91



6.  Maintain an up to date register, to be kept on site, of 
employees details to include their name, date of birth, 
national insurance number, current home address, 
photograph and contact details is in place and agreed by 
the Council’s Licensing Officer and can be evidenced on 
request by any officer of Lancashire Constabulary, 
Lancashire County Council or Burnley Borough Council 

By 28 November 
2018 

7.  Maintain a refusals register, of a type approved by 
Lancashire County Council or Burnley Borough Council, 
and ensure it is kept and maintained at the shop 
premises at 260 Colne Road, Burnley to record details of 
all refusals to sell tobacco and/or alcohol at the 
premises and can be evidenced on request by any officer 
of Lancashire Constabulary, Lancashire County Council 
or Burnley Borough Council 

By 28 November 
2018 

8.  Ensure that an incident book is kept and maintained at 
the shop premises to record the time, date and 
comprehensive details of all incidents of crime and 
disorder and can be evidenced on request by any officer 
of Lancashire Constabulary, Lancashire County Council 
or Burnley Borough Council 

By 28 November 
2018 

This notice offers you the opportunity to avoid the issue of a Community Protection Notice. 

* “Conduct” includes a failure to act to abate the nuisance described.
* “Conduct” on, or affecting, premises that a person owns, leases, occupies, controls, 
operates, or maintains, is treated as conduct of that person. 

IMPORTANT NOTICE

If you fail to comply with this Warning Notice a Community Protection Notice may be issued 
without further warning. Non-compliance with a Community Protection Notice carries criminal 
sanctions and can lead to a criminal record.

Failure without reasonable excuse to comply with a Community Protection Notice can lead to 
seizure and forfeiture of items, default works and recovery of costs and / or a fine of up to 
£2,500 in relation to an individual or up to £20,000 in the case of a body.

Non-compliance may also result in the issue of a fixed penalty notice in the sum of £100.
Authorised Officer:  Signature: 
                                Date: 12th November 2018

Schedule 1

Page 92



This behaviour consists of:

1. Allowing the storage and trade in illicit tobacco from the shop premises 
at260 Colne Road, Burnley 

2. Impacting on the trade of other retailers selling legal tobacco by 
offering illicit tobacco at an unfair discount 

3. Encouraging smoking by adults exposed to the sale of illicit tobacco by 
making it more affordable

4. Impacting on the health of adults using illicit tobacco without them 
knowing where and how it has been sourced or what it contains 

5. Encouraging smoking by children and young people exposed to the 
sale and proxy sale of illicit tobacco by making it more affordable

6. Impacting on the health of children and young people using illicit 
tobacco without them knowing where and how it has been sourced or 
what it contains 

7. Allowing the criminality relating to possession for supply of illicit 
tobacco taking place at the shop premises at 260 Cone road, Burnley 
to cause harassment, alarm and distress to residents in the locality 

8. Continually and unreasonably allowing this to happen since at least 
July 2018

9. Persistently and unreasonably failing to respond to warnings. 

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

LICENSING ACT 2003

THE CONDUCT OF HEARINGS 

1. Application

1.1 All hearings subject to the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings 
Regulations) 2005 will be held in accordance with this procedure.
Schedule 1 details the hearing which are subject to this procedure.

2. Time of Hearing 

2.1 Hearings will commence within the times illustrated in Column 2 of 
Schedule 1, and where the hearing is scheduled to take place on 
more than one day, it will take place on consecutive working days.

2.2 Hearings will normally take place from 2-5pm or 6-9pm on the day 
of the hearing, but hearings may take place at the discretion of the 
Committee of Sub-Committee appointed to hear the matter in 
exceptional circumstances.

3. Members of the Committee or Sub-Committee

3.1 Where the full Licensing Committee sit to hear an application, the 
full Committee will sit, excluding a member who:

a) has sat on a Development Control hearing in respect of the                 
premises subject to, or concerned in the Licensing Act 2003 
application and/or

b) is affected by the application e.g. to be assessed on a case by case 
basis when a Member is a Member for the Ward or a nearby Ward 
in which the premises are situated

Page 95

Agenda Item 8



c) has become an interested party by representing the applicant or 
any interested party prior to the hearing.

     3.2        Where a Sub-Committee sit to hear an application, it will consist of 3 
members of the full Committee and will exclude a member who:

a) has sat on a Development Control hearing in respect of the                 
premises subject to, or concerned in the Licensing Act 2003 
application and/or

b) is affected by the application e.g. to be assessed on a case by case 
basis when a Member is a Member for the Ward or a nearby Ward 
in which the premises are situated

c) has become an interested party by representing the applicant or 
any interested party prior to the hearing.

      3.3         Members will act in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003, be aware 
of the Local Authority Co-ordinators of Regulatory Services Guidance 
on the Role of Elected Members in Relation to Licensing Committee 
Hearings under the Licensing Act 2003 and the requirements of the 
Standards Board for England and Wales.

4. Opening of a Hearing and Identifying Parties to the Hearing

        4.1         The Chair of the Committee or Sub-Committee will introduce the             
members of the Committee or Sub-Committee.

        4.2        The Licensing Manager of Legal Advisor will advise the Committee of 
Sub-Committee but will not make recommendations or be part of the 
determination process.  They will not retire with the Committee or Sub-
Committee members for the purposes of a  determination but the Legal 
Advisor may be asked by the Committee or Sub-Committee to give 
advice.

          4.3      At the commencement of proceedings the Legal Advisor will identify in 
turn, each party to the hearing who is present, and in relation to that 
party, whether they are represented, and if so, by whom.

          4.4     The Legal Advisor will identify in turn each party to the hearing who is 
not present at the hearing and in relation to that party will clarify;

                   a) whether there is evidence that they were given Notice of the Hearing

Page 96



                   b) whether that party has given notice that they intend to attend or be 
represented

                   c) whether that party has given notice that they consider a hearing to be 
unnecessary 

                   d) whether that party has given notice that they wish to withdraw their 
representation 

         

          4.5     Where a party has given notice that they do not intend to attend or be 
represented, the Committee or Sub-Committee will state whether they 
intend to proceed in the absence of that party.

          4.6       Where a party has not given such notice and has failed to attend or be 
represented, the Committee or Sub-Committee will then decide 
whether it is necessary in the public interest to adjourn the hearing to a 
specified date or hold the hearing in the party’s absence.  The 
Committee or Sub-Committee may invite representations from the 
other parties present on this issue before making their decision.

           4.7      The Committee or Sub-Committee, should it decide to proceed must 
subsequently consider the application, representation or notice made 
by a party who does not attend, attaching the appropriate weight of 
evidence to it.

5.  Hearings to be held in public

           5.1      Unless the Committee determine otherwise following consideration of 
representations, if any, from the parties present, the hearing shall take 
place in public.  A member of the public, unless a party to the hearing 
or a person granted permission to address the hearing by the 
Committee or Sub-Committee at the request of one of the parties, shall 
not be entitled to address the hearing.

            5.2     Where representations are made under 5.1 above, such parts or the 
hearing as the Committee or Sub-Committee in their absolute 
discretion determine shall be held in private.

            5.3   The decision at paragraph 5.2 and the reasons for it will be given in 
public, and the Committee or Sub-Committee will also state whether 
any party or any persons assisting or representing a party are to be 
treated as a member of the public for this purpose.

    6.  Commencement of the Hearing

Page 97



            6.1   The Legal Advisor will explain the procedures that the Committee or 
Sub-Committee will follow at the hearing. In particular the Legal 
Advisor will clarify that;:

                 a) the hearing will take the form of a discussion led by the Committee or 
Sub-Committee and cross-examination will not be permitted unless the 
Committee or Sub-Committee considers that cross examination is 
required for it to consider the representations, application or notice as 
the case may require.

b) Members of the Committee or Sub-Committee may ask a question of 
any party or other person appearing at the hearing.

c) Members of the Committee or Sub-Committee may take into account 
documentary or other information produced to the authority before the 
hearing in support of their application, representation or notice. These 
will have been provided to the Committee or Sub-Committee members 
by the Licensing Manager prior to the meeting and the substantive 
content of the documents need not be repeated verbally at the hearing.

d) Members of the Committee or Sub-Committee may take into account 
any new documentary or other information produced o the authority on 
the day of the hearing with the content of all other parties (if any) and 
the substantive content of any such documents need not be repeated 
verbally at the hearing.

e) Parties will be allowed a maximum equal period to exercise their rights, 
such period to be determined by the Committee or Sub-Committee.

f) Parties will be allowed to clarify points upon which they wish to support 
their application.

g) Parties may seek permission to question any other party subject to 
Paragraph a) above.

h) Parties may seek permission to address the Committee or Sub-
Committee.

7. Procedure 

7.1   The Licensing Manager or other appointed officer of the Licensing   
Authority are not a party to the hearing. The Manager will outline the 
facts of the application and relevant representations received from 
parties.

Page 98



7.2 The Licensing Manager will then outline the legislation under which a 
determination is required.

7.3 The Licensing Manager will outline;     

a) Relevant parts of the Act
b) Relevant subordinate legislation
c) Relevant sections from the statutory guidance made under Section 182 

of the Act
d) Relevant paragraphs of the Statement of Licensing Policy made under 

Section 5 of the Act.
e) The time limit which the Committee or Sub-Committee must make a 

determination under the law.

7.4 Each party to the hearing present will then in turn provide information 
supporting or clarifying of their representations – commencing with the 
Responsible Authorities, followed by any interested party and then the 
applicant.

7.5 The Committee or Sub-Committee may advise all the parties of details 
of representations they have received from parties not present.

7.6 Thereafter each party, commencing with the Responsible Authorities, 
followed by any interested party and finally the Applicant, will be given 
an opportunity to summarise their representations. No new evidence 
will be allowed to be introduced by any party during the course of any 
such summation.

7.7 The Committee or Sub-Committee will disregard any information given 
by a party or any other person to whom permission to appear at the 
hearing has been given which is no relevant to;

a) Their application, representation or notice or in the case of another 
person, the application, representation or notice of the party requesting 
their appearance, and

b) the promotion of the Licensing Objectives or in the case of a hearing to 
consider a notice given by a chief officer of the police, the crime 
prevention objective only.

            7.8    The Committee or Sub-Committee will satisfy themselves that they 
have heard all the relevant information and retire to make their decision 
in private.

8. Persons behaving in a disruptive manner

8.1 The Committee or Sub-Committee may require any person attending 
the, hearing who in their opinion are behaving in a disruptive manner to 
leave the hearing and may;

Page 99



a) refuse to permit that person to return, or
b) permit them to return only on such conditions as the Committee or 

Sub-Committee may specify

but such a person may, before the end of the hearing, submit to the 
authority in writing any information which they would have been entitled 
to give orally had they not been required to leave.

9. Adjournment of Hearing

9.1 The Committee or Sub-Committee may adjourn a hearing to a 
specified date or arrange for the hearing to be held on specified 
additional dates where it considers this necessary to consider any 
representations or notice made by a party.

9.2 It will not adjourn a hearing in such a way to create an effect on the 
requirements of granting or rejecting an application under Schedule 8 
of the Act or a review under Section 167 of the Act.  

10. Determinations 

10.1 The Committee or Sub-Committee will make its determination at the 
conclusion of the hearing but in certain circumstances may make a 
determination within a period of 5 working days of the last day of the 
hearing.

11. Notice of Determination     

11.1 The Licensing Manager will issue a notice of determination forthwith to 
all parties. Such notice will include the reasons for the determination 
and details of the right of any party to appeal against the decision.

12. Record of Proceedings

12.1 The Democracy Team Officer will provide for a record of the hearing to 
be taken in a permanent and intelligible form and kept for 6 years from 
the date of determination.

Page 100



SCHEDULE 1

Column 1 Column 2

Provision under which hearing is 
held.

Period of time which hearing must be 
commenced.

1. Section 18(3)(a) (determination 
of application for premises 
license)

20 working days beginning with the day after 
the end of the period during which 
representations may be made as prescribed 
under section 17(5)(c)

2. Section 31(3)(a) (determination 
of application for a provisional 
statement).

20 working days beginning with the day after 
the end of the period during which 
representations may be made as prescribed 
under section 17(5)(c) by virtue of section 30.

3. Section 39(3)(a) (determination 
of application to vary premises 
license).

 20 working days beginning with the day after 
the end of the period during which 
representations may be made as prescribed 
under section 17(5)(c) by virtue of section 
34(5).

4. Section 39(3)(a) (determination 
of application to vary premises 
license to specify individual as 
premises supervisor).

20 working days beginning with the day after 
the end of the period within which a chief 
officer of police may give notice under section 
37(5)

5. Section 44(5)(a) (determination 
of application for transfer of 
premises license).

20 working days beginning with the day after 
the end of the period within which a chief 
officer of police may give notice under section 
42(6)

6. Section 48(3)(a) (cancellation 
of interim authority notice 
following police objection).

5 working days beginning with the day after 
the end of the period within which a chief 
officer of police may give notice under section 
48(2)

7. Section 52(2) (determination of 
application for review of 
premises licence). 

20 working days beginning with the day after 
the end of the period during which 
representations may be made as prescribed 
under section 51(3)(c).

8. Section 72(3)(a) (determination 
of application for club 
premises certificate).

20 working days beginning with the day after 
the end of the period during which 
representations may be made as prescribed 
under section 71(6)(c)

9. Section 85(3) (determination of 
application to very club 
premises certificate)

20 working days beginning with the day after 
the end of the period during which 
representations may be made as prescribed 
under section 71(6)( c) by virtue of section 
84(4)

10. Section 88(2) (determination of 
an application for review of 
club premises certificate)

20 working days beginning with the day after 
the end of the period during which 
representations may be made as prescribed 
under section 87(3)(c) 

11. Section 105(2)(a) (counter 
notice following police 

7 working days beginning with the day after 
the end of the period within which a chief 

Page 101



objection to temporary event 
notice)

officer of police may give a notice under 
section104(2)

12. Section 120(7)(a) 
(determination of application 
for grant of personal licence)

20 working days beginning with the day after 
the end of the period during within which the 
chief officer of police may give a notice under 
section 120(5)

13. Section 121(6)(a) 
(determination of application 
for the renewal of personal 
licence)

20 working days beginning with the day after 
the end of the period during within which the 
chief officer of police may give a notice under 
section 121(3)

14. Section 124(4)(a) (convictions 
coming to light after grant or 
renewal of personal licence)

20 working days beginning with the day after 
the end of the period during within which the 
chief officer of police may give a notice under 
section 124(3)

15. Section 167(5)(a) (review of 
premises licence following 
closure order)

10 working days beginning with the day after 
the day the relevant licensing authority 
received the notice given under section 165(4)

16. Paragraph 4(3)(a) of Schedule 
8 (determination of application 
for conversion of existing 
licence)

10 working days beginning with the day after 
the end of the period within which a chief 
officer of police may give a notice under 
paragraph 3(2) or (3) of Schedule 8

17. Paragraph 16(3)(a) of Schedule 
8 (determination of application 
for conversion of existing club 
certificate)

10 working days beginning with the day after 
the end of the period within which a chief 
officer of police may give a notice under 
paragraph 15(2) or (3) of Schedule 8

18. Paragraph 26(3)(a) of Schedule 
8 (determination of application 
by holder of a justices’ licence 
for grant of personal licence)

10 working days beginning with the day after 
the end of the period within which a chief 
officer of police may give a notice under 
paragraph 25(2) of Schedule 8

Page 102



Document is Restricted

Page 103

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 109

Agenda Item 10a
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 131

Agenda Item 10b
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 135

Agenda Item 10c
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 137

Agenda Item 10d
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 169

Agenda Item 10e
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 183

Agenda Item 10f
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 185

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the last Meeting
	7 Determination of a Premises Licence Application-European Foods
	7a Appx A-Application
	7b Appx B- LCC Trading Standards
	7c Appx C-Lancashire Constabulary
	7d Appx D- LCC Public Health
	7e Appx E- Burnley Borough Council Licensing
	7f Appx F- Burnley Borough Council Streetscene
	ED APPX F (a) REDACTED 210119

	8 Conduct of Hearing
	10 Determination of a Premises Licence Application-European Foods
	10a Appx A-Application
	10b Appx B-LCC Trading Standards
	10c Appx C-Lancashire Constabulary
	10d Appx D-LCC Public Health
	10e Appx E-Burnley Borough Council Licensing
	10f Appx F- Burnley Borough Council Streetscene
	ED APPX F (a) 210119 JJ CP WARNING NOTICE


